
GŴYS A RHAGLEN SUMMONS AND AGENDA

ar gyfer for a

CYFARFOD O
GYNGOR SIR
YNYS MÔN

MEETING OF THE 
ISLE OF ANGLESEY
COUNTY COUNCIL

a gynhelir yn to be held at the

SIAMBR Y CYNGOR
SWYDDFA’R SIR

LLANGEFNI

COUNCIL CHAMBER
COUNCIL OFFICES

LLANGEFNI

DYDD IAU
15 RHAGFYR 2016

THURSDAY
 15 DECEMBER 2016

am 2.00 o’r gloch at 2.00 pm

Public Document Pack



 A G E N D A

1.   MINUTES  

To submit for confirmation, the draft minutes of the meetings of the County Council 
held on the following dates:-

•  27th September, 2016 
•  18th October, 2016 (Extraordinary)

2.   DECLARATION OF INTEREST  

To receive any declaration of interest from a Member or Officer in respect of any 
item of business.

3.  TO RECEIVE ANY ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRPERSON, LEADER 
OF THE COUNCIL OR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

4.  QUESTIONS RECEIVED PURSUANT TO RULE 4.1.12.4 OF THE 
CONSTITUTION  

5.   PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS  

To receive any petition in accordance with Paragraph 4.1.11 of the Constitution.

6.   2017/18 COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME  

To submit a report by the Head of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer.

7.   ADOPTION OF POWERS BY COUNCIL AND DELEGATION TO OFFICER  

To submit a joint report by the Head of Function (Council Business)/ Monitoring 
Officer and the Head of Regulation and Economic Development.

8.   FREEDOM OF THE COUNTY TO THE ROYAL NAVY SUBMARINE SERVICE  

To submit a report by the Head of Democratic Services.



 

 1 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL  
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2016 
 
 
PRESENT:   
 

Councillor Robert G Parry OBE FRAgS (Chair) 
 
Councillors Lewis Davies, R Dew, Jim Evans, Ann Griffith, 
John Griffith, K P Hughes, Vaughan Hughes, Victor Hughes, 
W T Hughes, Llinos Medi Huws, Carwyn Jones, G O Jones, 
H E Jones, R Ll Jones, R.Meirion Jones, Jeffrey M.Evans, 
Alun W Mummery, Dylan Rees, J A Roberts, Nicola Roberts, 
Alwyn Rowlands, Dafydd Rhys Thomas, Ieuan Williams and 
P S Rogers. 
 

IN ATTENDANCE: Chief Executive, 
Assistant Chief Executive (Governance and Business Process 
Transformation), 
Assistant Chief Executive (Partnerships, Community and Service 
Improvement), 
Head of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer, 
Head of Function (Council Business)/Monitoring Officer, 
Head of Democratic Services, 
Head of Children Services (for item 9), 
Head of Adult’s Services (for item 9), 
Accountancy Services Manager (BHO) (for items 7 & 8), 
Finance Manager (CK) (for items 7 & 8), 
Chief Public Protection Officer (DR) (for item 11), 
Committee Officer (MEH). 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  None 
 

APOLOGIES: Councillor D R Hughes, T Ll Hughes, A M Jones and 
Richard Owain Jones. 
 
 

Due to the absence of the Vice-Chair, Councillor Richard Owain Jones, the 
Committee resolved to elect a Vice-Chair for this meeting and Councillor  G.O. 
Jones was duly elected to that position. 
 
 

1. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meetings of the Isle of Anglesey County Council were confirmed 
as follows :- 
 

 12th May, 2016 (10.30 a.m.) 

 12th May, 2016 (2.00 p.m.) 

 26th May, 2016 (Extraordinary) 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1.



 

 2 

 
2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  

 
No declaration of interest received. 
 

3. TO RECEIVE ANY ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRPERSON, LEADER 
OF THE COUNCIL OR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE.  
 
The Chair made the following announcements :- 
 

 Congratulations to competitors from Anglesey who enjoyed success in the 
Royal Welsh Show, Anglesey Show and the National Eisteddfod recently; 

 Congratulations to those secondary school pupils who succeeded in their 
GCSE’s and A Levels; 

 Congratulations to members of Council staff who have succeeded in their 
examinations and have qualified in their relevant fields; 

 Congratulations to Councillor Nicola Roberts who has graduated from Bangor 
University recently; 

 Congratulations to a Parents’ Football Team from Amlwch who won the 
competition ‘Codi Gôl’ which featured recently on S4C; 

 Congratulations to Glesni Tegid from Ysgol David Hughes, Menai Bridge who 
has won the ‘Welsh Student of the Year’ with Sky Sports Academy; 

 Congratulations to Cerys Davies and Harri Evans from Ysgol David Hughes, 
Menai Bridge on being selected to serve on the National Steering Group of the 
Welsh Young Ambassadors; 

 Congratulations to Councillor Ann Griffith who has been appointed Deputy 
Police and Crime Commissioner; 

 Congratulations to Councillor John Griffith on his recent marriage; 

 The new reception ‘Cyswllt Môn’ will be opened officially on 7th October, 2016. 
 

The Deputy Leader of the Council wished to extend his condolences to the Chair of 
the County Council, the Leader of the Council and their families in their recent 
bereavements.  All Members and Officers also wished to extend their sympathy to 
the Chair of the Council and the Leader. 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council further wished to extend his message of 
condolence to any Member or any staff member of the Council who have suffered 
bereavement recently. 
 
Members and Officers stood in silence as a mark of sympathy and respect. 
 

4. QUESTIONS RECEIVED PURSUANT TO RULE 4.1.12.4 OF THE 
CONSTITUTION  
 
No questions received pursuant to rule 4.1.12.4 of the Constitution. 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

 3 

5. PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS  
 
No petition had been received in accordance with Paragraph 4.1.11 of the 
Constitution. 
 

6. POLITICAL BALANCE  
 
Reported by the Head of Democratic Services – that the Council needed to review 
the political balance arrangements on its Committee following notice that one 
Member had ceased to be a Member of the Independent Group.  In accordance 
with political management protocols the revised political management 
arrangements had been discussed with Group Leaders. 
 
RESOLVED :- 
 

 To confirm the political balance arrangements and the number of seats 
allocated to each of the Groups under the Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989, and the number of seats given by custom and practice to the 
Members not subject to political balance as set out in the matrix; 

 In accordance with the above recommendation, the Council delegates to 
the Chief Executive, in consultation with Group Leaders, to determine the 
allocation of seats to Unaffiliated Members arising from these changes 
and advise the Head of Democratic Services accordingly; 

 The Leader to notify the Head of Democratic Services with regard to the 
Independent Group’s membership on various Committees as a result of 
the changes. 

 
7. ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW FOR  2015/16  

 
Submitted – the report of the Head of Function (Resources)/ Section 151 
Officer as presented to the Audit and Governance Committee held on 25th July, 
2016 and Executive on the 19 September, 2016. 
 
RESOLVED :- 
 

 To note that the outturn figures contained in the report; 

 To note the provisional 2015/16 prudential and treasury indicators in the 
report. 

 
8. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS FOR 2015/16 AND ISA 260 REPORT  

 
Submitted – a report by the Head of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer as 
presented to the Audit and Governance Committee on 21st September, 2016. 
 
RESOLVED :- 
 

 To accept the Statement of Accounts 2015/16; 

 To note the acceptance of the Annual Governance Statement by the Audit 
Committee and referral to the Leader of the Council and the Chief 
Executive for signature. 

Page 3



 

 4 

 
9. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE STATUTORY DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES  

 
Submitted – the report by the Assistant Chief Executive (Governance and Business 
Process Transformation) as Statutory Director of Social Services. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Governance and Business Process Transformation) 
and designated Director of Social Services reported that the annual report reviews 
the effectiveness of social services over the year in responding to challenges whilst 
also defining the objectives for the year to come.  The report looks back and takes 
stock of how well the Social Services have responded to the areas identified for 
improvements by the CSSIW in its Annual Performance Report for 2014/15.  The 
areas identified within the report was Children’s Services where CSSIW had noted 
that improvements remained fragile.  The number of children in care has increased 
significantly and the number of children on the register has also increased.  The 
recruitment and retention of experienced staff has been a problem within the 
service but the situation has since improved and a number of experienced and 
newly qualified staff have recently joined the team but sufficient time needs to be 
given for them to establish themselves within their roles within Children’s Services.   
 
She further noted that Children’s Services has been given priority and a Panel of 
elected members was established to monitor the implementation of the Children’s 
Services Improvement Plan and also to increase understanding of the Social 
Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014. Substantial investment has been made 
within Children’s Services to ensure the delivery of statutory services and 
compliance with statutory requirements.  CSSIW have announced that Children’s 
Services will be inspected during the Autumn and this will give an opportunity to 
evaluate the improvements made within the service and identify how much more 
work needs to be done. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive was pleased that work has started on the 
development of an Extra Care facility in Llangefni. 
 
RESOLVED to endorse the Annual Report of the Statutory Director of Social 
Services for 2015/16. 
 

10. WELSH LANGUAGE STRATEGY  
 
Submitted – a report by the Assistant Chief Executive (Improving Partnerships, 
Communities and Services) in relation to the Welsh Language Strategy for 2016 – 
2021. 
 
RESOLVED to approve the Welsh Language Strategy for 2016 – 2021. 
 
 

11. REVIEW OF THE AUTHORITY'S GAMBLING POLICY  
 
Submitted – a report by the Head of Regulation and Economic Development in 
relation to a review of the authority’s Gambling Policy. 
 

Page 4



 

 5 

RESOLVED to endorse the amended Gambling Policy. 
 

12. SENIOR OFFICERS STAFFING STRUCTURE  
 
Submitted – a report by the Head of Corporate Transformation with regard to the 
revised Heads of Service staffing structure. 
 
RESOLVED to accept the revised Heads of Services staffing structure and to 
authorise the removal of the reference to the post of Head of Service 
(Planning and Public Protection) within the Council’s Constitution.  
 
 
 
 The meeting concluded at 2.30 pm 

 
 COUNCILLOR BOB PARRY OBE FRAgS 
 CHAIR 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL  
 

Minutes of the Extraordinary meeting held on 18 October 2016 
 
 

PRESENT:   
 

Councillor Robert G Parry OBE FRAgS (Chair) 
Councillor Richard Owain Jones (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors Lewis Davies, R Dew, Jeffrey M Evans, Jim Evans, 
Ann Griffith, John Griffith, K P Hughes, T Ll Hughes, 
Vaughan Hughes, T. Victor Hughes, W T Hughes, 
Llinos Medi Huws, A M Jones, Carwyn Jones, G O Jones, 
R Ll Jones, R Meirion Jones, Alun W Mummery, Dylan Rees, 
J A Roberts, Nicola Roberts, Alwyn Rowlands, Ieuan Williams and 
P S Rogers. 
 

IN ATTENDANCE: Chief Executive, 
Head of Democratic Services, 
Head of Corporate Transformation (for item 3), 
Legal Services Manager, 
Committee Officer (MEH). 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  Mr. Gareth Hall (Consultant – Strategic Advice) (for item 5)  
 

APOLOGIES: 
 
 
 

Councillors Raymond Jones, D R Hughes, H E Jones and 
Dafydd Rhys Thomas. 
 

The Chair of the County Council reported that it will be the 50th Anniversary of the 
Aberfan disaster on the 21st October, 2016.  He stated that 116 children and 28 
adults were killed following a Coal Tip above the village collapsing and engulfing 
Pantglas Junior School and nearby houses.   Members and Officers stood as a 
mark of respect. 
 
The Chair expressed his best wishes to Councillors H. Eifion Jones and Raymond 
Jones who were unwell at present. 
 

 
 
Presentation – Euro 2016 Competition 
 
The Chair of the County Council said that it was an honour and privilege to 
recognise and celebrate the success of the Wales Football Team during the 
European Championships 2016 and especially Mr. Osian Roberts, Assistant 
Manager of the Welsh National Team and Mr. Wayne Hennessey, the Wales 
goalkeeper.  Mr. Osian Roberts was born in Anglesey and was brought up in 
Bodffordd.  Mr. Wayne Hennessey was born in Bangor but was raised in 
Beaumaris. 
 

Page 7



 

 2 

The Chair welcomed children from the Bodffordd Primary School and Mr. Elfed 
Jones who had been instrumental in supporting the County Council to honour both 
Osian Roberts and Wayne Hennessey.   
 
The Chair also welcomed staff of the County Council who are learning Welsh at 
present to the presentation. 
 
The Chair presented Mr. Osian Roberts with an award in recognition of the part he 
played in the success of the Wales Football Team in the European Championships 
2016.  Mr. Osian Roberts thanked the Chair and Members of the County Council for 
the honour of receiving his award.  He paid tribute to his family and the community 
of Bodffordd for the support he has received throughout his childhood and during 
his career.  
 
The Chair presented Mr. Maurice Hennessey, Mr. Hennessey’s uncle accepted the 
award on behalf of Wayne, who was unable to attend due to football commitments, 
for his part in the success of the Wales Football Team.  Mr. Maurice Hennessey 
thanked the Chair and Members of the County Council for the honour of receiving 
the award on behalf of Wayne. 
 
The Chair presented Councillor Trefor Lloyd Hughes with an award for his 
commitment and contribution to football in Wales.  Councillor Hughes has been a 
loyal servant to the North Wales Coast Football Association and was elected as the 
Football Association for Wales President in 2012 until 2015.  Councillor Trefor Lloyd 
Hughes thanked the Chair and Members of the County Council for the honour of 
receiving the award.  He paid tribute to the Wales Team and also was glad that 
over 1,500 children take part in Junior Football Leagues on the Island.  Councillor 
Hughes also paid tribute to his family for the support he has been given over the 
years. 
 
Councillor T.V. Hughes and Councillor Alwyn Rowlands paid tribute to the success 
of Osian Roberts and Wayne Hennessey for their success in the European 
Championships.  They also gave a background of the childhood and support of 
both Osian and Wayne’s families and their commitment to the success in the sport.    
 

1. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
 
None received. 
 

2. PARLIAMENTARY REVIEW  
 
Submitted – the report of the Head of Democratic Services in relation to the 2018 
Review of parliamentary Constituencies – Initial Proposals by the Boundary 
Commission for Wales. 
 
The new legislation has reduced the number of Parliamentary constituencies in 
Wales from 40 to 29.  No existing constituency would remain unchanged under the 
initial proposals.  Ynys Môn is one of seven principal councils in Wales which fall 
below the maximum of the statutory electorate range and which therefore could be 
included wholly with a new constituency.  Due to the number of additional electors 

Page 8



 

 3 

required and the requirement for the Commission to take into account local 
government boundaries, the constituency should encompass the wards 
surrounding Bangor and including the Town of Caernarfon and those wards 
immediately to the east of Caernarfon.  An alternative would be to include electoral 
wards to the north of Bangor, but particularly given the geographic size of ‘Gogledd 
Clwyd and Gwynedd’ and the electorate of ‘Colwyn and Conwy’, it was considered 
that this would involve adverse effects on the surrounding constituencies which 
would be less desirable.  The suggested name for the constituency is ‘Ynys Môn ac 
Arfon’ and the suggested alternative name is ‘Isle of Anglesey and Arfon’.   
 
The Committee considered the report and the majority of the Members were of the 
opinion that an Ynys Môn Parliamentary Constituency needs to be retained.  The 
historic context of Parliamentary representation and need to safeguard the unique 
identify of the Island and its natural administrative boundaries.  Members 
considered that the Island of Ynys Môn should be compared to the Isle of Wight.  In 
England it has been proposed that the Isle of Wight has 2 Members of Parliament 
as they have over 110,000 electorate.  
 
Following deliberations it was RESOLVED to oppose the Boundary Commission 
for Wales’ suggestion that the Ynys Môn constituency should encompass the 
wards surrounding Bangor and including the Town of Caernarfon and wards 
immediately to the east of Caernarfon. 
 

3. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2015/16  
 
Submitted - the Head of Corporate Transformation report on the Annual 
Performance 2015/16. 
 
The Portfolio Holder (Performance Transformation, Corporate Plan and Human 
Resources) reported that the report highlights the Council’s progress against its  
Improvement Objectives for 2015/16 as outlined through 7 key areas set out in the 
2014/15 Annual Delivery Document.   
 
It was RESOLVED to accept and approve the Annual Performance Report for 
2015/16 for publication by the 31 October, 2016 statutory deadline. 
 

4. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
The Chief Executive drew attention to the reasons noted in the Public Interest Test 
to exclude the item.  One reason referred to the fact that Members not having had a 
chance to consider the draft response to PAC 2 and that this could prejudice the 
eventual decision.  The other reason referred to the possibility of prejudicing any 
subsequent planning application.  However, he noted that Elected  
Members wishes to discuss the item in public session and provided Members  
confine their observations to general, strategic issues then the item could be held in 
public.   
 
Members unanimously RESOLVED that the matter be discussed in public. 
 

Page 9



 

 4 

5. THE COUNTY COUNCIL'S RESPONSE TO HORIZON'S PRE-APPLICATION 
CONSULTATION - STAGE 2  
 
Submitted – the report of the Chief Executive incorporating the Authority’s response 
to Horizon Nuclear Power’s Second Stage Pre-Application Consultation (PAC 2) 
regarding the Wylfa Newydd project. 
 
It was reported that the proposed New Nuclear Build at Wylfa Newydd requires a 
Development Consent Order (DCO) application to be submitted in respect of the 
main power station and offsite integral developments.  Horizon Nuclear Power 
anticipates submitting the DCO application to the Planning Inspectorate in May 
2017.  Following examination of the application a recommendation will be made by 
the Planning Inspectorate to the Secretary of State for Business Energy and 
Industrial Strategy who will determine the application and the final conditions (called 
requirements) which will apply to any consent if granted.    Under the statutory 
regime in Wales all enabling works such as highways improvements and site 
preparation, and associated developments will not be included in the DCO 
application but will be subject to 10 separate Town and County Planning Act 
(TCPA) applications.  These applications will be submitted to the Planning Authority 
for determination over the coming months.   
 
The second stage pre-application consultation (PAC 2) follows PAC1 which was 
carried out in September 2014 and an interim consultation in January 2016.  PAC2 
is the final formal consultation prior to submission of the DCO and covers all of the 
main nuclear site, the integral offsite developments and the associated 
development.  PAC2 has an 8 week consultation period which began on 31st 
August, 2016 and will come to an end on 25th October, 2016.  
 
The Leader of the Council gave a presentation and noted that the project covers 
the following  :- 
 

 Main power station site and offsite integral developments (e.g. MEEG) in DCO; 

 Enabling works (highways and site preparation); 

 Associated development (e.g. Workers Accommodation) in 10 TCPA 
applications to be submitted to the County Council. 

 
He stated that main consultation document covers 22 separate chapters; 
Consultation Overview Document; Preliminary Environmental Information Report 
(PEIR) (29 separate chapters);Specific Appendices to the PEIR (6 documents); 
Technical Documents (5 Papers) i.e. Language Impact Assessment, Health Impact 
Assessment, Habitat Regulations Assessment Draft Evidence Plan, Sustainability 
Assessment; Topic Papers (15 separate papers); Masterplans (4 papers); Strategic 
Questions (11 questions); Community Benefits Scheme and Local Noise Mitigation 
Plan.  
 
The Leader stated that in preparing a response to PAC 2, feedback has been 
sought from Officers in service areas of the County Council, Elected Members 
briefing sessions and specialist input from professional and legal consultants 
(funded by HNP via the Planning Performance Agreement agreed with the County 
Council).  The Authority remains supportive, in principle, to the Wylfa Newydd 

Page 10



 

 5 

project but further detail is required with regard to Education, Skills and Jobs, 
Supply Chain, Worker Accommodation/Housing, Welsh Language & Culture, 
Tourism, Health & Wellbeing and Site Selection Methodology. 
 
The Committee considered the report and raised the following issues :- 
 

 The Company needs to be aware and respect the ethos, culture and the Welsh 
language of the Island; 

 The quality of life of Anglesey and its communities needs to be protected due to 
the impact of such a development; 

 Training of children and young people within local schools is paramount for the 
future of good employment opportunities available to local people; 

 Horizon Nuclear Power needs to comply with the Statutory Planning Guidance 
(SPG); 

 Upgrade of the A5025 needs to be monitored due to the immense pressure that 
will entail during construction and future travelling to the site by workers on a 
daily basis; 

 The Cemaes to Amlwch route and the Llanfechell highway infrastructure needs 
to be upgraded to minimise the impact on the villages; 

 Country lanes need to be restricted to Wylfa Newydd traffic; 

 Hitachi should consider extending their 100 year commitment at the site due to 
waste and ground impact issues; 

 Storage of nuclear waste needs to be addressed;  

 Clarity needs to be sought as to the intention of Horizon with regard to Sites A 
and B at Amlwch for workers accommodation.  Significant concerns have been 
expressed by local residents with regard to this matter;   

 The Health Sector needs to be strongly engaged with the effect on health and 
social care sector on the Island; 

 Tourism is a key economic sector on the Island and concerns raised to the 
potential lack of tourist accommodation being available due to Wylfa Newydd 
workers being housed within the tourist accommodation; 

 Legacy details needs to be defined clearer by the Company as there is a lack of 
detail as to how this will be achieved.  It was suggested that funding should be 
made available to enable all public meetings to be bilingual through translation 
facilities; 

 Disappointment that Llangefni has been disregarded as a location for any form of 
project related development opportunities for legacy within or in close proximity 
to one of the largest towns on the Island. 

 
It was RESOLVED :- 
 

    To approve the formal response to the Second Stage Pre-Application 
Consultation  

(PAC 2); 
 

 That delegated authority be given to the Chief Executive to carry out any 
minor amendments, variations or corrections which are identified and 
reasonably necessary prior to formal issue of the response to PAC 2; 
 

Page 11



 

 6 

 To delegate authority to the Chief Executive to conduct negotiations on the 
overall obligations package which will comprise of the respective planning 
obligation (S106) and related agreements for the DCO and TCPA 
applications.  

 
 

 
 The meeting concluded at 12.20 pm 

 
 COUNCILLOR BOB PARRY OBE FRAgS 
 CHAIR 

Page 12



 

 

 

 
 

 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO: COUNTY COUNCIL 

DATE: 15 DECEMBER  2016 

SUBJECT: COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 

LEAD OFFICER(S) MARC JONES 
HEAD OF FUNCTION (RESOURCES) AND SECTION 151 
OFFICER 

CONTACT OFFICER GERAINT JONES  
REVENUES AND BENEFITS SERVICES MANAGER  
(EXT. 2651) 

ACTION : TO ADOPT THE COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 
FOR 2017/18 

 
 
 
 

1. Purpose of the Report 
 

1.1 The report explains the requirement to adopt a scheme by 31 January 2017 with regard to 
2017/18.  

 

2. Background Information 
 

2.1 The full Council on 9 December 2015 adopted its Council Tax Reduction Scheme for the 
financial year 2016/17.  The full Council is required to consider, under Part 2, Regulation 18 
of “The Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed Requirements (Wales) Regulations 
2013 No. 3029 (W.301) (the Regulations) for each financial year whether to revise its 
scheme or replace it with another Council Tax Reduction Scheme.  The full Council must 
make any revision to its scheme, or any replacement scheme, no later than 31 January in the 
financial year preceding that for which the revision or replacement comes into effect. 

 

2.2 The full Council, under the current scheme, formally adopted the Regulations as its scheme 
and, using discretionary powers, decided to use local discretion to adopt a Local War 
Disablement Pension and War Widow’s or Widower’s Pension Discretionary Scheme in 
accordance with the Regulations.  The elements disregarded as income are detailed in the 
current scheme for the purpose of this  local discretion.  This provides additional Council Tax 
support to that statutorily required to pay under the Regulations.  This is the only local 
discretion awarded by the full Council under its current Local Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme. 

 

2.3 The full Council must also have regard to Regulation 17 of the Regulations when revising or 
replacing a scheme.  If the full Council decides to revise or replace its scheme, it must 
publish a draft revised scheme in such a manner it think fits and must consult with any 
persons it considers likely to have an interest in the operation of its Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme. There is, however, no expressed requirement to consult annually, it is only if a 
scheme is revised or replaced when consultation has to take place.   

Page 13

Agenda Item 6.



 

 

 

 

2.4 For 2017/18, the Welsh Government is not revising or changing the Regulations but, as for 
2016/17, the Welsh Government will be making amending regulations to uprate the financial 
figures used in the Regulations and to reflect any other technical amendments required as a 
result of changes to underlying benefits. Again, as for 2016/17, the timing of these amending 
regulations is dependent on the Chancellor of Exchequer’s Autumn Statement (23 November 
2016) and the subsequent uprating schedule published by the Department for Work and 
Pensions a few days after the Autumn Statement.  The earliest date the Welsh Government 
will be able to lay the new draft Regulations reflecting the uprate to financial figures or any 
other technical amendment before the National Assembly for Wales is early December 2016.  
These regulations must be laid in draft for 20 working days with recess dates not being 
counted and a plenary debate held before they come into effect.  For 2016/17, these 
amending regulations did not come into effect until 20 January 2016 and it is expected a 
similar timetable will apply for 2017/18. 

 

2.5 As the full Council is meeting on 15 December 2016 to determine its local Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme for 2017/18, it is proposed that the Head of Function (Resources) 
(Section 151 Officer) is given the authority to make administrative arrangements so that all 
annual changes for uprating of financial figures or technical revisions are reflected in the 
Council’s Council Tax Reduction Scheme and for each subsequent year. 

 

3. Review of Current Tax Reduction Scheme 
 

3.1 In Appendix B the full Council is provided with information, statistics and values concerning 
the impact of its Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2016/17.  This information will be useful 
in future to the full Council in its consideration whether to revise or replace its current 
scheme, in that:– 

 

 It can use this data to measure trends (currently accurate at 30 September 2016) against 
the effective baseline (accurate at December 2012) when the Equality Impact Assessment 
was undertaken of protected characteristics and incidence of vulnerability.  These trends 
are measured annually in September (similar data was provided to the full Council when it 
considered its scheme for 2016/17); 

 

 To begin to understand the impact of the scheme upon the inhabitants of the Island with 
reference to age, disabled people, gender and race; 

 

 For the future, to potentially inform the full Council’s understanding of the potential costs 
of different potential schemes and of the potential costs of full or partial protection of 
particular client groups and vulnerable people.  At present, up to 100% reduction must be 
provided under the Regulations (if eligible) and the Welsh Government has stated that 
these arrangements will continue for 2017/18 but a review of these arrangements from 
April 2018 onwards will apply.  The provision of 100% reduction is not sustainable in the 
longer term, with those in receipt of a partial Council Tax Reduction probably having to 
pay more or for those currently receiving 100% reduction having for  the first time to 
contribute towards their Council Tax costs after April 2018.   

 

3.2 Since the baseline data established in December 2012, the following trends can be identified 
for the Island with regard to its Council Tax Reduction Scheme:– 

 

 Caseload:  the reduction in the caseload continues  and recently at a higher rate than for 
the same period last year.  From December 2012 to September 2014 there was an overall 
reduction in the caseload of 6.3% (6,960 down to 6,525).  During the annual period from 
September 2014 up to September 2015, the caseload was further reduced by 1.8% to 
6,410 and from September 2015 to September 2016 the caseload fell again by 2.5% 
down to 6,252; 

Page 14



 

 

 

 

 Caseload:  the number of passported claimants, i.e. passported claimants are claimants 
on Job Seekers Allowance (Income Based), Income Support, Employment Support 
Allowance (Income Related ) and Pension Credit Guarantee where the Department for 
Work and Pensions have already verified income, has declined from 69.7% to 69.5% of 
the caseload during the 12 months prior to September 2016.  Non-passported claimants, 
i.e. standard claimants, has increased from 30.3% to 30.5%.  For standard claimants the 
local authority has to verify income details.  These claimants are usually in work but 
income is at a level where they are eligible for a full or partial Council Tax Reduction or 
are pensioners with savings and other income; 

 

 Age:  the analysis at December 2012 suggested a slightly higher incidence of Working 
Age over Pensioner Age claims by number (51.5%/48.5%).  By September 2014, this had 
increased very slightly (51.7%/48.3%) with the same pattern up to September 2015 
(52.7%/47.3%).  Up to September 2016 the pattern has stabilised showing a 51.9%/48.1% 
split; 

 

 Age:  the analysis of households with children claiming a Council Tax Reduction in 
December 2012 was 21.9% of caseload. By September 2014, this had increased to 
24.2% and by September 2015 this remain relatively static at 24.1% but by September 
2016 this had fallen to 23.2%; 

 

 Disability:  the analysis of households who receive a Council Tax Reduction where 
specified disability payments were received (these being – Care Component of a Disability 
Living Allowance (Low, Middle or High), Attendance Allowance, Support Component of 
Employment Support Allowance, Incapacity Benefit and Personal Independance 
Payments), in December 2012 this was 39.3% of caseload.  By September 2014, this had 
decreased to 34.8%. This trend during the last 12 months has been reversed, with 37.0% 
of households receiving a reduction and this pattern, where specified disability payments 
were received continued to increase up to 39.8% of the caseload; 

 

 Gender:  the incidence of female single parents as at December 2012 was 92.5% (13.3% 
of caseload).  By September 2014, this was 92.3% (14.3% of caseload) and, by 
September 2015, it was 92.1% (13.2% of the caseload).  In September 2016, the figure 
stands at 91.1% (14.2% of the caseload); 

 

 Race:  The Office of National Statistics, in December 2012, published its March 2011 
Census relating to diversity for the Isle of Anglesey.  All claimants completing a Council 
Tax Reduction application form are asked to complete a voluntary ethnic survey. ( See 
Table 6 in Appendix B for a breakdown based on the voluntary survey which is compared 
to the March 2011 Census figures). 
 

3.3 For the first 6 months of 2016/17, 693 new Council Tax Reduction Scheme claimants have 
been processed (compared with 782 for the same period last year), with 11,006 changes in 
circumstances processed (compared to 8,594 for the same period last year).  The average 
time taken to process new claims and changes in circumstances is 6.2 days in this period 
(for the same period last year the average time was 6.4 days). 
 

4. Review of the Current Scheme – Local Discretions    
 

4.1 As the Welsh Government is not proposing to amend the Regulations, apart from financial 
upratings and technical amendments that are used in the Regulations, the only 
considerations available to the full Council to review and decide is in the area of local 
discretions allowed by the Regulations.    Under the Regulations, the full Council has local 
discretion in these areas only:- 

Page 15



 

 

 

 

 The ability to increase the standard extended reduction period of 4 weeks given to 
persons after they return to work, where they have previously been receiving a council tax 
reduction that is to end as a result of their return to work, i.e. “Extended Payment 
Period”; 

 

Estimated increased costs for 2017/18 associated with extending the statutory extended 
period ranges between £7,750 for two weeks up to £22,770 for 6 weeks beyond the 
standard 4 weeks.  Under the previous Council Tax Benefits rules, no special provision 
existed to allow this and the full Council did not apply this when Council Tax Reduction 
was introduced.  It is recommended therefore not to revise the scheme and extend the 
payment period for 2017/18. 

 

 Discretion to increase the amount of War Disablement Pensions and War Widows 
Pensions which is to be disregarded when calculating income of the claimant, i.e. “War 
Widows/Widowers”;  

 

The full Council already has a local scheme allowing additional disregards in this area.  It 
is recommended that this should continue.  The cost to the Council is estimated to be 
£21,750 in 2016/17.  It is recommended, therefore, that the additional disregards applied 
under the current local scheme will continue unrevised for 2016/17. 

 

 The ability to backdate the application of Council Tax Reduction with regard to late claims 
prior to the standard period of three months before the claim, i.e. “Backdating of 
Claims”. 

 
The full Council has always held the view that 3 months is an adequate time period to 
allow backdating of Council Tax Reduction for both pensioner and working age claims.  
The full Council is of the view that there are sufficient support networks available to advise 
claimants.  There is a great deal of uncertainty about the likely cost if such a local scheme 
was applied and it is recommended, therefore, not to revise the scheme by extending the 
back-dating period beyond 3 months during 2017/18.  

 
4.2 It should be noted that there is no additional money available from the Welsh Government to 

fund these discretionary elements. 
 
4.3 Under Appendix 1 of its Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2016/17, the full Council details 

the procedure by which a new claimant can apply for a reduction under the scheme. Below is 
provided an analysis of the method of application used by new claimants for the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme between 1 April 2016 and 30 September 2016:- 

 

Method of application Number Percentage(%) 

A. Electronic based application   

i. By appointment/self help at  Revenues & Benefits 
Office, Llangefni 

148 21.4 

ii. By appointment/self help at Connect Môn, Llangefni 
(opened on 29 September 2016) 

2 0.3 

iii. By appointment over the telephone to Revenues & 
Benefits Office, Llangefni 

64 9.2 

iv. By appointment with approved and suitably trained 
partners 

37 5.3 

v. On-line application via web site – self help 175 25.3 

vi. Department for Work and Pension input documents 47 6.8 

B. Paper based application 1 0.1 

C. Method of application not known as not properly 
recorded 

219 31.6 

     TOTAL 693 100 

 

Page 16



 

 

 

It is also recommended that these procedures remain the same and are not revised for 
2017/18 (apart from the introduction of “electronic signatures” when claiming by electronic 
means before the end of December 2016 and required procedural changes that must be 
made as Universal Credit is introduced from now onwards,  for certain claimants).  Staff have 
also been reminded to properly record, in all instances within our records, the method of 
application used. 

 

5. Financial and Risk Implications 
 

5.1 The Welsh Government’s Local Government Revenue and Capital Settlement 2017/18 is not 
expected until 21 December 2016 and, therefore, the Council Tax Reduction Scheme Grant 
to be awarded to the Council to meet the cost of its local Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 
2017/18 is not yet known (at the time of writing this report).  The projections below are made 
based on the Draft Settlement for 2017/18 which was published on 19 October 2016.  
Current expenditure (end of Quarter 2, 2016/17 is £5,374,694), offset by a Welsh 
Government Council Tax Reduction Scheme Grant of £5,099,000 for 2016/17.  This gives a 
projected shortfall of £210k to be borne by the Authority for 2017/18.  In the Council’s Draft 
Budget for 2017/18, £500k has been allocated to meet this cost and also additional provision 
costs with regard to bad debt in respect of over paid benefits. 

 
5.2 Two factors for 2017/18 will affect the expenditure on the scheme:- 

 

 Between April 2016 and September 2016 there has been a caseload reduction of 1%, 
compared to a 1% - 2% reduction in 2015/16 and  2% - 3% reduction in 2014/15; 

 

 Planned increase in Council Tax of 3.0% for 2017/18. 
 

An additional uncertain factor, during 2017/18, affecting expenditure on the scheme will be 
the impact of the Chancellor of the Exchequer’s proposed changes at the Autumn Statement 
on 23 November 2016 and also, as a consequence of the Autumn Statement, whether the 
Welsh Government will upgrade or not financial figures with regard to their amending 
regulations with regard to the scheme for 2017/18. 
 

5.3 Having regard to the above, at best the estimated expenditure on the scheme will be 
£5,425,210 (assuming a 2% reduction in caseload with a 3.0% increase in Council Tax) and, 
at worst, an estimated expenditure at £5,535,930 (assuming no caseload reduction with a 
3.0% increase in Council Tax). 

 
5.4 There is, therefore, an estimated expected shortfall of between £260k and £371k in grant 

funding which will have to be met by the Council.  This is based on the full Council re-
adopting the current scheme unchanged.  However, the extent of the shortfall will become 
clearer during the budget setting process. 

 
6. Legal Implications 

 
6.1 The Council is obliged to make a Council Tax Reduction Scheme under the Prescribed 

Requirements Regulations.  Although the legislation provides for a default scheme to apply in 
the absence of the Council making a scheme, the Council is, nevertheless, under a statutory 
duty to adopt its own scheme, even if it chooses not to apply any of the discretionary 
elements.  

Page 17



 

 

 

7. Equalities Implications 
 

7.1 The Welsh Government has compiled an equalities impact assessment following its 
consultation for the original 2012 Regulations.  A local equalities impact assessment has 
been carried out on behalf of the Council in joint arrangements across Wales also with 
regard to the 2012 Regulations (December 2012, published March 2013) and this was 
updated as at September 2014, September 2015 and is further updated as at September 
2016 as detailed in Appendix B. 

 

8.   Welsh Language Implications 
 
       8.1 The Welsh Assembly’s main regulations and amending regulations are bilingual.  The                  

Council’s own Scheme is bilingual and the claiming form, whether by electronic means or by 
using paper, is also bilingual. Our approved partners are encouraged to provide a bilingual 
service and our claimant self-service is fully bilingual.  The over the telephone claiming 
service or by appointment with staff is also fully bilingual. 
 

 8.2  All Council Tax Award Notices are bilingual and the service can speak and communicate         
with customers in the language of their choice.  Despite this, the software administering the          
Scheme is only in English (there is no other market choice).  The correspondence and           
communication between the Council and the Department for Work and Pensions is normally         
in English only, but application forms through the medium of Welsh are available from the         
Department for Work and Pensions. 

 
9.    Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
     9.1    In the drafting of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2017/18, the Well-being of Future              

Generations (Wales) Act 2015 was taken into consideration and how the Scheme supports                
the well-being goals.  The purpose of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme is to give the ability               
for working age people and pensioners on low income to meet their Council Tax costs.  
Under the Scheme, additional help is provided to pensioners and disabled people by 
disregarding a higher level of income and, also, setting the level of income upon which 
pensioners and disabled people are to live on, before reduced amounts are paid in the form 
of reductions, at a higher level than for working age people. This aligns with one of the main 
aims of welfare reform, it is more advantageous to be in work than out of work. 

 
      9.2   The Scheme also gives an additional reduction with regard to customers who receive war                

disablement pension and war widows/ers pension. 
 
       9.3    The Scheme contributes to the well-being goals of a prosperous Wales, a healthier Wales, a  
               more equal Wales, and a Wales of cohesive communities. 
                              
10.    Background Documents 

 

The Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed Requirements (Wales) Regulations 2013  
No. 3029 (W.301) 
 
The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements and Default Schemes) (Wales) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2017 No ???? (W???) 
 
The Wales Council Tax Reduction Scheme: Comparisons within Wales of Protected   
Characteristics and incidence of Vulnerability March 2013 – Simon Horsington and Associates    
Ltd, 2013 and as updated September 2014, September 2015 and September 2016. 

Page 18



 

 

 

 
11.    Recommendation 
 

 That the full Council does not revise or replace its current Council Tax Reduction Scheme with 
another scheme; 

 

 That the full Council formally adopts the current Council Tax Reduction Scheme for the financial 
year 2017/18 (see Appendix A); 

 

 That the full Council in its meeting provides authority to the Head of Function (Resources) 
(Section 151) to make administrative arrangements so that all annual changes for uprating of 
financial figures or technical revisions in any amending regulation or regulations are reflected in 
the Council’s Council Tax Reduction Scheme and for each subsequent year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GERAINT JONES 
REVENUES AND BENEFITS SERVICE MANAGER                          26 OCTOBER 2016     

Page 19



 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

 

 

Isle of Anglesey County 

Council  

 

Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme 2017/18 

 

Prescribed Scheme for 

Pensioner and Non 

Pensioner Claimants 

Page 20



 

1 

 

Introduction 
 
Since 1 April 2013, Council Tax Benefit as a method of supporting low income households with 
their Council Tax was abolished.   It was replaced by a Council Tax Reduction Scheme.   
 
On 19 December 2012, the Welsh Government  made regulations to introduce a national scheme 
for Wales, “The Council Tax Reduction Scheme and Prescribed Requirements (Wales) 
Regulations 2012 No. 3144 (W.316)” (Prescribed Regulations) and “The Council Tax Reduction 
Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales) Regulations 2012 No. 3145 (W.317)” (Default 
Regulations).  Further amending regulations were passed by the Welsh Government on 22 
January 2013 “The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements and Default 
Scheme)(Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2013 (Amending Regulations). 
 
The Prescribed Regulations contained a sunset clause.  As a result of this clause, the above 
mentioned regulations only applied to the 2013/2014 financial year.  This clause required the 
regulations to be reviewed and a new set brought forward by 1 January 2014 by Welsh Ministers.  
If new regulations were not brought forward by this date, there would be no provision for Council 
Tax Reduction Schemes to be implemented in Wales after 31 March 2014. 
 
On 26 November 2013, the Welsh Assembly approved two new sets of regulations: “The Council 
Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Schemes)(Wales) Regulations 2013” (the Default Scheme 
Regulations) and “The Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed Requirements (Wales) 
Regulations 2013 not  (the Prescribed Requirements Regulations) – these can be accessed:- 
 

Default Scheme Regulations 
 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2013/3035/contents/made 
 

Prescribed Requirements Regulations 
 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2013/3029/contents/made 
 
Amending Regulations 
 
On ?? January 2017, a further set of amending regulations, to mainly uprate the financial figures 
in line with the cost of living increases and address a number of minor technical points,were 
approved by the National Assembly for Wales - the “Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed 
Requirements and Default Schemes) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2016” (Amending 
Regulations).  These can be accessed: 
 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2017/??/contents/made 
 

These regulations therefore prescribe the main features of the scheme to be adopted by all 
Councils in Wales.  An obligation, therefore, remains upon the Isle of Anglesey County Council to 
adopt a scheme.  The Isle of Anglesey County Council is required to adopt a Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme by 31 January 2017 for 2017/18 onwards.   
 

The Isle of Anglesey County Council’s Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme will be based on the 
Welsh Government’s Prescribed Requirements Regulations (as amended).  These Prescribed 
Requirements Regulations also permit the Isle of Anglesey County Council to adopt a scheme 
which incorporates a limited range of discretionary elements to provide further support for 
Council Tax.  Where the Isle of Anglesey County Council has adopted additional discretionary 
elements, these discretionary elements are set out within this document.  
 

If the Isle of Anglesey County Council fails to make a scheme by 31 January 2017, then the 
default scheme shall apply under the provisions of the Default Scheme Regulations.  The Isle of 
Anglesey County Council can, however, only apply discretion if it adopts its own scheme under 
the Prescribed Requirements Regulations. 

Page 21



 

2 

 

Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Requirements 
 
The full Council of the Isle of Anglesey County Council approved its Local Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme on 15 December 2016 relating to the year beginning 1 April 2017.  It specifies, in 
accordance with the Prescribed Requirements Regulations:– 
 

 Classes of persons who are entitled or not entitled to a reduction 

 The reductions which persons in each class are to be entitled 

 Scheme procedural requirements:- 
 
1. the procedure by  which a person may apply for a reduction under the scheme. 

 
2. the procedure by which a person may appeal against a decision of an authority with 

respect to a person’s entitlement to a reduction  under the scheme or the amount of any 
reduction to which the person is entitled. 
 

3. the procedure by which a person may apply to an authority for a reduction under section  
13A(1)(c) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992. 

 

Page 22



 

3 

 

Isle of Anglesey County Council’s Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
 
The Isle of Anglesey County Council formally adopted its Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
based on requirements as detailed in the Welsh Government’s “The Council Tax Reduction 
Schemes and Prescribed Requirements (Wales) Regulations 2013 No.3029 (W.301) 
“(Prescribed Requirements Regulations) and the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed 
Requirements and Default Schemes) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2017 No.?? (W.?6)” 
(Amending Regulations). The Prescribed Requirements Regulations and amending regulation 
can be accessed at:- 
 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2013/3029/contents/made 
 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2017/??/contents/made 
 
In summary:- 
 
Part 1 of the Prescribed Requirements Regulations:-  
 
Contain introductory provisions and definitions of key words and phrases used in this scheme. 
 
Part 2 of the Prescribed Requirements Regulations: scheme requirements in relation to 
billing authorities in Wales (as amended by Amending Regulations) 
 
What the scheme adopted by the Isle of Anglesey County Council must include – classes of 
persons, reductions and scheme procedural requirements. 
 
Part 3 of the Prescribed Requirements Regulations: Classes of persons entitled to a 
reduction under this scheme (as amended by Amending Regulations) 
 
Pensioners who fall within Classes A to B. 
 
Non-pensioners who fall within Classes C to D. 
 
Part 4 of the Prescribed Requirements Regulations: Classes of persons who must not be 
included under this scheme (as amended by Amending Regulations) 
 
Classes of persons prescribed to be excluded from this scheme, including persons treated as not 
being in Great Britain and persons subject to immigration control. 
 
Persons whose capital exceeds £16,000. 
 
Persons who are absent for a period from a dwelling. 
 
Persons who are students. 
 

Part 5 and Schedules 1 to 5 of the Prescribed Requirements Regulations: matters that 
must be included in this scheme in relation to pensioners (as amended by Amending 
Regulations) 
 

Schedules 1 to 5 set out the rules relevant to determine the eligibility of pensioners for a 
reduction and the amount of reduction under this scheme and the amount of maximum Council 
Tax Reduction under this scheme.  They also set out how income and capital for pensioners is 
treated in calculating eligibility for a reduction under this scheme. 

Page 23

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2013/3029/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2017/??/contents/made


 

4 

 

Part 5 and Schedules 6 to 10 of the Prescribed Requirements Regulations: matters that 
must be included in this scheme in relation to non-pensioners (as amended by Amending 
Regulations)  
 
Schedules 6 to 10 set out the rules relevant to determine the eligibility of non-pensioners for a 
reduction and the amount of reduction under this scheme and the amount of maximum Council 
Tax Reduction under this scheme.  They also set out how income and capital for non-pensioners 
is treated in calculating eligibility for a reduction under this scheme, including in cases where a 
non-pensioner or partner has been awarded universal credit. 
 
Schedule 11 of the Prescribed Requirements Regulations (as amended by Amending 
Regulations) 
 
This provides for the application of this scheme to students. 
 
Part 5 and Schedules 12 to 14 of the Prescribed Requirements Regulations: matters that 
must be included in this scheme in respect of all applicants i.e. pensioner and non-
pensioner (as amended by Amending Regulations) 
 
Schedule 12 concerns procedural matters that must be included in this scheme.  It describes the 
procedure by which a person can apply for a reduction in Council Tax under this scheme.  
Appendix 1 of this scheme provides details of how a person can apply to the Isle of Anglesey 
County Council for a reduction in Council Tax.   
 
Schedule 12 also describes how a person may make an appeal against certain decisions of the 
Isle of Anglesey County Council under this scheme.   
 
As the Isle of Anglesey County Council uses electronic communication in connection with making 
an application and award of a reduction, Schedule 12 details matters that must be included under 
this scheme. 
 
Schedules 13 and 14 describes who may make an application under this scheme, the date on 
which an application is made, backdating of applications for pensioners and non-pensioners, 
amendment and withdrawal of applications and evidence and information required with the 
application.  Schedules 13 and 14 also provide the requirements under this scheme for the 
information required to be provided by the Isle of Anglesey County Council when notifying the 
applicant of the decision and what must be included in the decision notice. 
 
Part 6 of the Prescribed Requirements Regulations (as amended by Amending 
Regulations) 
 
Set out the transitional provisions that will apply to persons who are in receipt of, or who have 
made an application for, a reduction under existing reduction schemes, when the new schemes 
come into operation. 
 
Discretionary elements agreed by the Isle of Anglesey County Council to provide Council 
Tax support in addition to the statutory requirements detailed in the Prescribed 
Requirements Regulations adopted by the Council 
 
The Isle of Anglesey County Council has decided to adopt a Local War Disablement Pension and 
War Widow’s or Widower’s Pension Discretionary Scheme.  This is detailed in Appendix 2 which 
provides the elements of such pensions that will be disregarded as income.  This is additional 
Council Tax support to that statutorily required in the Prescribed Regulations.  
 
This will be the only local discretion applied by the Isle of Anglesey County Council under its 
Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme. 

Page 24



 

5 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 
 

Details the following procedure by which a person can apply for a reduction under the 
scheme  
 

All persons must apply for a Council Tax Reduction, unless further Welsh Government 
regulations state otherwise.  This will be an electronic or a paper Council Tax Reduction 
Application Form delivered to the following designated offices:- 
 

A. An electronic application can be made by the following methods:– 
 

i.     By appointment to attend to complete the form at Connect Môn, Council Offices, 
Llangefni, LL77 7TW (Telephone 01248 755869/70/72/73/74/75/76/77/78/79) or 
for vulnerable clients to attend at their home to complete the application form 
(Telephone 01248 752658/752226). 
 

ii.     By appointment to complete the form over the telephone to the Revenues and 
Benefits Section Offices, Resources Function, Council Offices, Llangefni, LL77 
7TW (Telephone 01248 752658/752226). 

 

iii.     By appointment to complete the form by approved and suitably trained “partner” 
organisations.  These are currently – 

 

 J E O’Toole Centre, Trearddur Square, Holyhead, LL65 1NB (Telephone 
01407 760208);  

 any Citizens Advice Bureaux office on the Island (Telephone 01248 722652); 

 Isle of Anglesey County Council Housing Support at Trearddur Square, 
Holyhead, LL65 1NB  (Telephone 01407 765912) and Housing Customer 
Services, Council Offices, Llangefni (Telephone 01248 752200); and 

  Digartref Ynys Môn offices, Holyhead (Telephone 01407 765557) 
 

The Authority, during the year, may add to its list of approved and suitably trained 
“partners”. 

 

iv.     Electronically via the Isle of Anglesey County Council’s web site - 
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/advice-and-benefits/benefits-and-welfare- 
rights/housing-benefit-and-council-tax-reduction-online-application/ or at the self – 
service point within:- 

 

 Connect Môn, Council Offices, Llangefni, LL77 7TW (Telephone 01248 
755869/70/72/73/74/75/76/77/78/79); 

 Llanfaes Community Centre, Hampton Way, Beaumaris, LL58 8LG (Telephone 
01248 812986); 

 Iorwerth Rowlands Centre, Steeple Lane, Beaumaris, LL58 8AE (Telephone 
01248 811508); 

 Amlwch Library, Lôn Parys, Amlwch, LL68 9EA (Telephone 01407 830145); 

 Newborough Library, Prichard Jones Hall, Newborough, Llanfaipwllgwyngyll 
LL61 6SY (Telephone 01248 440770); 

 J E O’Toole Centre, Trearddur Square, Holyhead, LL65 1NB (Telephone 01407 
760208); 

 Gwelfor Community Centre, Ffordd Tudur, Morawelon, Holyhead, LL65 2DH 
(Telephone 01407 763518). 

Page 25

http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/advice-and-benefits/benefits-and-welfare-%20rights/housing-benefit-and-council-tax-reduction-online-application/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/advice-and-benefits/benefits-and-welfare-%20rights/housing-benefit-and-council-tax-reduction-online-application/


 

6 

 

 

v.     Department for Work and Pension Local Authority Input Document (LAID) and 
Local Authority Customer Information (LACI) where they declare an intention to 
claim a Council Tax Reduction. 

 

vi.  The following Universal Credit forms in electronic format from the Department for 
Work and Pensions where they declare an intention to claim a Council Tax 
Reduction: 

 

 LCTR2 – Local Council Tax Reduction Proforma 

 LCTR3 – Local Council Tax Reduction Profroma 
 

vii. Electronically in some other format as the Isle of Anglesey County Council may 
decide in the future. 

 

B. A paper application can be made by the following methods:- 
 

i. By approved application form received by the Isle of Anglesey Resources 
Function, Revenues and Benefits Section at its designated offices at Council 
Offices, Llangefni, LL77 7TW or the Benefits Office, Room 3, 2nd Floor, Town 
Hall, Newry Street, Holyhead, LL65 1HU.   

 
ii. The following Universal Credit forms from the Department for Work and 

Pensions where they declare an intention to claim a Council Tax Reduction:- 
 

 LCTR2 – Local Council Tax Reduction Proforma 

 LCTR3 – Local Council Tax Reduction Profroma 

Page 26



 

7 

 

APPENDIX 2 

LOCAL SCHEME – WAR PENSION DISREGARDS 
 Schedule 4, Regulation 30 – Pensioners 

Schedule 9, Regulation 31 – Non Pensioners 
 
 

INDIVIDUAL ELEMENTS INCOME DISREGARDED 

War Disablement Pension Yes 
(£10 statutory,  100% Local) 

War Widows or War Widower’s Pension Yes 
(£10 statutory,  100% Local) 

War Widow Pension (Pre 1973 – SPAL) Yes 
(2017/18) 100% statutory, 
£??.?? subject to annual 

uprating* 

Unemployability Supplement No 

Additional Allowance for Wife (paid with 
Unemployability Supplement) 

No 

Constant Attendance Allowance  Yes (statutory) 

Invalidity Allowance No 

Comforts Allowance No 

Age Allowance No 

Allowance for Lower Standard of Occupation No 

War Pensioners Mobility Supplement  Yes (statutory) 

Exceptionally Severe Disablement Allowance Yes (statutory) 

Severe Disablement Occupational Allowance Yes (statutory) 

Child Allowance No 

. 

* this is set by the Naval, Military and Air forces etc. “Disablement and Death” 
Service Pension Order 2006.  Uprating for 2017/18 has not yet been received. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 

8 

 

APPENDIX B 
 
Table 1:  Caseload 30 September 2016 
 

Description Number Percentage Value Percentage 

Total Council Tax Reduction awarded 6,252 100% £5,374,694 100% 

Percentage Awarded     

Council Tax Reduction full awards i.e. 100% 4,882 78.1% £4,484,060 83.4% 

Council Tax Reduction partial awards i.e. less than 100% 1,370 21.9% £890,634 16.6% 

Claim Type     

Passported* claims 4,343 69.5% £3,957,744 73.6% 

Non passported claims i.e. Standard Claims 1,909 30.5% £1,416,950 26.4% 

Council Tax Bands     

Band A (Disabled reduction) 8 0.1% £5,366 0.1% 

Band A 1,991 31.8% £1,402,766 26.1% 

Band B 1,993 31.9% £1,608,118 29.9% 

Band C 1,113 17.8% £1,024,399 19.1% 

Band D 687 11.0% £712,895 13.3% 

Band E 338 5.4% £428,568 8.0% 

Band F 105 1.7% £163,289 3.0% 

Band G 16 0.3% £27,299 0.5% 

Band H 1 0.0% £1,994 0.0% 

Band I 0 0.0% £0 0.0% 

Local town and community areas     

Holyhead 1,712 27.4% £1,332,515 24.8% 

Llangefni 543 8.7% £447,673 8.3% 

Amlwch 485 7.8% £416,873 7.8% 

Menai Bridge 220 3.5% £195,470 3.6% 

Llanfair Mathafarn Eithaf 217 3.5% £214,187 4.0% 

Rhosyr 204 3.3% £180,442 3.6% 

Valley 178 2.9% £144,476 2.7% 

Beaumaris 176 2.8% £156,812 2.9% 

Llanfairpwll 153 2.5% £135,688 2.5% 

Llanfair yn Neubwll 141 2.3% £116,347 2.2% 

Llanbadrig 138 2.2% £121,739 2.3% 

Llanfaelog 137 2.2% £124,381 2.3% 

Llanerchymedd 130 2.1% £111,567 2.0% 

Llanfihangel Esceifiog 106 1.7% £98,258 1.8% 

Bodedern 103 1.7% £92,551 1.7% 

Mechell 101 1.6% £95,282 1.8% 

Llangoed 100 1.6% £89,910 1.7% 

Llanidan 100 1.6% £83,799 1.6% 

Trewalchmai 95 1.5% £82,689 1.5% 

Pentraeth 94 1.5% £83,408 1.5% 

Bodorgan 91 1.4% £75,449 1.4% 

Llaneilian 90 1.4% £86,247 1.6% 

Cwm Cadnant 80 1.3% £76,070 1.4% 

Moelfre 80 1.3% £67,357 1.3% 

Rhosybol 79 1.3% £73,839 1.4% 

Bodffordd 76 1.2% £67,107 1.3% 

Aberffraw 72 1.2% £56,830 1.0% 

Bryngwran 66 1.0% £55,897 1.0% 

Llangristiolus and Cerrigceinwen 61 1.0% £67,609 1.3% 

Llanddaniel 53 0.8% £46,911 0.9% 

Cylch y Garn 52 0.8% £52,531 1.0% 

Page 28



 

9 

 

 

Description Number Percentage Value Percentage 

Local precepting areas (continued)     

Tref Alaw 50 0.8% £53,538 1.0% 

Llanddona 50 0.8% £48,974 0.9% 

Trearddur 48 0.7% £55,390 1.0% 

Llanfaethlu 43 0.7% £40,372 0.7% 

Llanddyfnan 42 0.7% £44,988 0.8% 

Llanfachraeth 37 0.6% £34,216 0.6% 

Rhoscolyn 22 0.3% £23,970 0.4% 

Penmynydd 18 0.2% £16,206 0.3% 

Llaneugrad 9 0.1% £7,126 0.1% 

 
*  Passported claims are Job Seekers Allowance (Income Based), Income Support, Employment Support Allowance 

(Income Related ) and Pension Credit Guarantee where the Department for Work and Pensions have already 
verified income.   

 
Table 2: Age - Working and Pension Claims 30 September 2016 

 
Description Number Percentage Value Percentage 

Total Council Tax Reduction awarded 6,252 100% £5,374,694 100% 

Age Group     

Working Age 3,247 51.9% £2,687,511 50.0% 

Pensioner Age 3,005 48.1% £2,687,183 50.0% 

Passported claims* by Age Group     

Working Age 2,328 37.3% £2,038,896 37.9% 

Pensioner Age 2,015 32.2% £1,918,848 35.7% 

Non Passported i.e. standard claims by Age Group     

Working Age 972 15.5% £703,400 13.1% 

Pensioner Age 937 15.0% £713,550 13.3% 

Household Composition by Age Group - Couple     

Working Age 767 12.3% £770,904 14.3% 

Pensioner Age 837 13.4% £892,408 16.7% 

Household Composition by Age Group - Single     

Working Age 2,462 39.3% £1,902,339 35.4% 

Pensioner Age 2,186 35.0% £1,809,043 33.6% 

 
*  Passported claims are Job Seekers Allowance (Income Based), Income Support, Employment support Allowance 

(Income Related ) and Pension Credit Guarantee where the Department for Work and Pensions have already 
verified income.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

10 

 

Table 3: Age – Households with responsibility for Children 30 September 2016 
 

Description Number Percentage Value Percentage 

Total Council Tax Reduction awarded 6,252 100% £5,374,694 100% 

Household Composition - status     

Couple  1,604 25.7% £1,663,312 31.0% 

Single 4,648 74.3% £3,711,382 69.0% 

Household Composition - children     

No children 4,803 76.8% £4,143,063 77.1% 

1 child 644 10.3% £523,583 9.7% 

2 children 441 7.1% £372,339 6.9% 

3 children 232 3.7% £210,387 3.9% 

4 children 89 1.4% £79,358 1.5% 

5 children 26 0.4% £26,110 0.5% 

6 children 9 0.1% £10,104 0.2% 

7 children 4 0.1% £4,922 0.1% 

8 children 1 0.0% £1,190 0.0% 

9 children 3 0.1% £3,638 0.1% 

Couples with children      

Working Age 468 7.5% £457,907 8.5% 

Pensioner Age 17 0.3% £19,253 0.3% 

Single with children      

Working Age 941 15.0% £732,241 13.5% 

Pensioner Age 23 0.4% £22,230 0.4% 

Couples with children under 5 years old     

Working Age 228 3.7% £219,162 4.1% 

Pensioner Age 1 0.0% £1,041 0.0% 

Single with children under 5 years old     

Working Age 402 6.4% £313,312 5.8% 

Pensioner Age 1 0.0% £1,075   0.0% 

 
Table 4:  Households in which specified disability payments* received 30 September  2016 

 
Description Number Percentage Value Percentage 

Total Council Tax Reduction awarded 6,252 100% £5,374,694 100% 

Household Composition by age group     

Working Age 1,177 18.8% £1,064,347 19.8% 

Pensioner Age 1,314 21.0% £1,230,859 22.9% 

 
*   Care Component of a Disability Living Allowance (Low, Middle or High), Attendance Allowance, Support 

Component of Employment Suppport Allowance, Incapacity Benefit and Personal Independance Payments 

 
Table 5:  Analysis of protected characteristics: Gender, Single Parents 30 September 2016 

 
Description Number Percentage Value Percentage 

Total Council Tax Reduction awarded 6,252 100% £5,374,694 100% 

Single Parents Household - Female     

Working Age 878 14.0% £677,074 12.5% 

Pensioner Age 12 0.2% £11,291 0.2% 

Single Parents Household - Male     

Working Age 66 1.1% £58,369 1.1% 

Pensioner Age 8 0.1% £7,737 0.1% 

    
 

Page 30



 

11 

 

 
Table 6:  Ethnic Background Isle of Anglesey 30 September 2016 

 
Ethnic Origin March 2011 Census Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

September 2016 

White British 96.6% 90.2% 

White other 1.7% 8.2% 

Mixed heritage 0.8% 0.5% 

Asian (All) 0.7% 0.3% 

Black (All) 0.1% 0.8% 

Other (All) 0.3% 0.0% 

 
 

Table 7:   Additional Council Tax Reduction Awarded under local discretionary scheme 30 
September 2016 

 
Description Number Percentage Value Percentage 

Total Council Tax Reduction awarded 6,252 100% £5,374,694 100% 

War Widows (Pre 1973) 3 0.1% £2,766 0.1% 

War Disablement Pension 21 0.3% £18,986 0.4% 

 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



CC-019632-MY/346907 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 

Report to: THE EXECUTIVE AND FULL COUNCIL 
 

Date: 28/11/16 and 15/12/16 
 

Subject: For the Council to adopt the powers listed in Enclosure 1 
and for such powers to be delegated to the Head of Service 
(Regulation and Economic Development) 

Portfolio Holder(s): Councillor Richard A. Dew 
Councillor Alwyn Rowlands 

Head of Service: Dylan Williams – Head of Service (Regulation and 
Economic Development) 
Lynn Ball – Head of Function (Council Business) / 
Monitoring Officer 

Report Author: 
Tel: 
E-mail: 

Mared Wyn Yaxley – Solicitor: Corporate Governance 
Ext. 2566 
mwycs@ynysmon.gov.uk 

Local Members:  N/A 
 

 

A –Recommendation/s and reason/s 

 
1. That Council: 

1.1 Adopt the powers listed in Enclosure 1, 
1.2 Amend the Scheme of Delegation in the Constitution to delegate the exercise of 

the said powers to the Head of Service (Regulation and Economic 
Development) 

1.3 Authorise the Council’s Head of Function (Council Business) / Monitoring Officer 
to make the necessary changes to the Scheme of Delegation, and any 
consequential amendments, to reflect the adoption and delegation of the said 
powers  

 

 

 

B – What other options did you consider and why did you reject them and/or opt for 
this option?  

 
The Council has the option of refusing to adopt the powers at Enclosure 1 but adopting 
(and delegating) the powers will enable the Council to operate a wider range of solutions. 
Details of the purpose for which each power may be used is explained at Enclosure 2. 
 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7.



CC-019632-MY/346907 

 

C – Why is this a decision for the Executive? 

 
As the report proposes to amend the Scheme of Delegation, which is part of the 
Constitution, then this report must be considered by the Executive before a final decision is 
made by Council  
 

 

CH – Is this decision consistent with policy approved by the full Council? 

 
Yes, where relevant 
 

 

D – Is this decision within the budget approved by the Council? 

 
The cost of exercising these new/additional powers will fall within the operational budget of 
the Service 
 
Potential costs will be one of the considerations taken into account before the powers are 
engaged; on a case by case basis 
 

 

DD – Who did you consult?        What did they say? 

1 Chief Executive / Senior Leadership 
Team (SLT) 
(mandatory) 

Discussed at SLT meeting on 31.10.2016 – 
supportive  

2 
 

Finance / Section 151 
(mandatory)  

Part of 1 above 

3 Legal / Monitoring Officer 
(mandatory)  
 

Report by the Legal Section/Monitoring 
Officer – proposal supported 

4 Human Resources (HR) Not relevant 

5 Property  Not relevant 

6 Information Communication 
Technology (ICT) 

Not relevant 

7 Procurement Not relevant 

8 Scrutiny Not relevant 

9 Local Members Not relevant 

10 Any external bodies / other/s Portfolio Holders/Shadow Portfolio Holders 

 

E – Risks and any mitigation (if relevant)  

1 Economic Not relevant 

2 Anti-poverty Exercise of the powers based on the merit 
of the circumstances may benefit deprived 
areas  

3 Crime and Disorder Some of the legislation included at 
Enclosure 1 is aimed at addressing issues 

Page 34



CC-019632-MY/346907 

of crime / illegal activity 

4 Environmental Exercise of some of the powers to be 
delegated to the Head of Service 
(Regulation and Economic Development) 
will seek to address certain environmental 
matters including food hygiene and animal 
welfare etc. 

5 Equalities Not relevant 

6 Outcome Agreements Not relevant 

7 Other Not relevant 

 

F - Appendices: 

 
Enclosure 1 :- The list of additional powers which may be adopted by the Council, and 
under which the Head of Service (Regulation and Economic Development), may exercise 
his delegated authority 
 
Enclosure 2:- A table summarising the reasons for the additional delegated powers 
 

 

FF - Background papers (please contact the author of the Report for any further 
information): 

 
None 
 
 

Page 35



Enclosure 1 

CC-019632-MWY/346908 

Additional legislation to be added to the Scheme of Delegation to the Head of Service 
(Regulation and Economic Development) :- 
 
The Antisocial Behaviour, Crime & Policing Act 2014 
The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 
The Intellectual Property Act 2014 
The Consumer Rights Act 2015 
The Psychoactive Substances Act 2016 
The Enterprise Act 2016 
The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 
The General Food Regulations 2004 
The Official Feed and Food Controls (Wales) Regulations 2009 
The Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (Wales) Regulations 2014 
The Animal Welfare (Breeding of Dogs)(Wales) Regulations 2014 
The Sheep and Goats (Records, Identification and Movement) (Wales) Order 2015 
The Microchipping of Dogs (Wales) Regulations 2015 
The Animal Feed (Composition, Marketing and Use) (Wales) Regulations 2016 
The Animal Feed (Hygiene, Sampling etc. and Enforcement) (Wales) Regulations 2016 
The Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2010 (as amended) 
The Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Act 2013 
The Food Hygiene (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 
The Food Hygiene (Wales)(Amendment)(No2) Regulations 2014 
The Food Hygiene Rating (Promotion of Food Hygiene Rating) (Wales) Regulations 2016 
The Food Information (Wales) Regulations 2014 
The Products Containing Meat etc (Wales) Regulations 2014 
The Food with Added Phytosterols or Phytostanols (Labelling)(Wales) Regulations 2014 
The Fish Labelling (Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2014 
The Country of Origin of Certain Meats (Wales) Regulations 2015 
The Honey (Wales) Regulations 2015 
The Natural Mineral, Spring Water and Bottled Drinking Water (Wales) Regulations 2015 
The Private Water Supplies (Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2016 
The Nicotine Inhaling Products (Age of Sale and Proxy Purchasing) Regulations 2015 
The Packaging (Essential Requirements) Regulations 2015 
The Petroleum (Consolidation) Regulations 2014 
The Proxy Purchasing of Tobacco, Nicotine Products etc. (Fixed Penalty Notices)(Wales) 
Regulations 2015 
The Smoke-free (Private Vehicles) Regulations 2015 
The Smoke-free Premises, etc (Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2016 
The Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2015 
The Tobacco and Related Products Regulations 2016 
The Marriage of Same Sex Couples (Conversion of Civil Partnership) Regulations 2014 
The Marriage of Same Sex Couples (Registration of Building and Appointment of 
Authorised Persons) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 
The Reporting of Suspicious Marriages and Civil Partnerships (Amendment) Regulations 
2014 
The Gender Recognition Register (Marriage and Civil Partnership) Regulations 2015 
The Proposed Marriages and Civil Partnerships (Waiting Periods) Regulations 2015 
The Registration of Marriages Regulations 2015 
 

Page 36



Enclosure 2 
 

CC-019632-MWY/346909 
 

Additional Public Protection Legislation – 2016 

Subject Area Title Purpose 

Trading 
Standards 

The Intellectual Property Act 2014 An Act that modernises and simplifies certain aspects of 
intellectual property law. Forms part of the legislative framework 
that allows Trading Standards to tackle “counterfeiting” of goods 

The Consumer Rights Act 2015 An Act to consolidate and amend the law relating to the rights of 
consumers. It makes provision about the investigatory powers for 
enforcing the regulation of traders. 

The Psychoactive Substances Act 2016 An Act that creates a blanket ban on the production, distribution, 
sale and supply of psychoactive substances for human 
consumption. It gives Police and Trading Standards a range of 
powers to enforce the ban. The Police have the main powers and 
responsibilities but local authorities also have responsibilities to 
enforce. 

The Enterprise Act 2016 An Act which includes the requirement for regulators to have 
regard to the Regulators’ Code. It also extends the Primary 
Authority Scheme established by the Regulatory Enforcement and 
Sanctions Act 2008. 

a)The Nicotine Inhaling Products (Age of Sale and 
Proxy Purchasing) Regulations 2015 
The Proxy Purchasing of Tobacco, Nicotine Products 
etc. (Fixed Penalty Notices)(Wales) Regulations 2015 
b)The Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products 
Regulations 2015 
The Tobacco and Related Products Regulations 2016 
c)The Smoke-free (Private Vehicles) Regulations 2015 
The Smoke-free Premises, etc (Wales)(Amendment) 
Regulations 2016 

a) Regulations relating to sales of tobacco products – powers 
assisting our enforcement of sale to underage children 

b) Regulations laying down rules relating to packaging of 
tobacco products 

c) Welsh Government regulations governing smoking in 
vehicles and other premises 

The Packaging (Essential Requirements) Regulations 
2015 

Regulations updating the rules on packaging and packaging waste 

The Petroleum (Consolidation) Regulations 2014 
 

Regulations updating rules on storage of petroleum products 

Animal 
Health 

a)The Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 
b)The Sheep and Goats (Records, Identification and 
Movement) (Wales) Order 2015 
c) The Animal Welfare (Breeding of Dogs)(Wales) 
Regulations 2014 
The Microchipping of Dogs (Wales) Regulations 2015 

a) Regulations updating rules on proper disposal of animal 
carcasses 

b) Regulation updating rules relating to record keeping for 
owners of sheep & goats 

c) Regulations updating rules governing commercial dog 
breeders and introducing rules requiring dog owners to 
microchip their dogs 

Food Safety a)The Official Feed and Food Controls (Wales) 
Regulations 2009 
b)The Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Act 2013 
The Food Hygiene (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 
2014 
The Food Hygiene (Wales)(Amendment)(No2) 
Regulations 2014 
The Food Hygiene Rating (Promotion of Food Hygiene 
Rating) (Wales) Regulations 2016 
c)The General Food Regulations 2004 
d)The Food Information (Wales) Regulations 2014 
The Products Containing Meat etc (Wales) Regulations 
2014 
The Food with Added Phytosterols or Phytostanols 
(Labelling)(Wales) Regulations 2014 
The Fish Labelling (Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 
2014 
The Country of Origin of Certain Meats (Wales) 
Regulations 2015 
The Honey (Wales) Regulations 2015 
The Natural Mineral, Spring Water and Bottled 
Drinking Water (Wales) Regulations 2015 

a) Regulations on official controls performed to ensure the 
verification of compliance with feed and food law, animal 
health and welfare rules. 

b) Regulations governing the rules introduced in relation to the 
Food Hygiene rating of premises. 

c) Regulations updating rules on enforcing controls on such 
things as import and export of food, traceability, 
presentation, safety, withdrawal and recall of food. 

d) Regulations updating and extending rules relating to the 
labelling, composition and supply of certain foodstuffs 

Feed 
Hygiene 

The Animal Feed (Composition, Marketing and Use) 
(Wales) Regulations 2016 
The Animal Feed (Hygiene, Sampling etc. and 
Enforcement) (Wales) Regulations 2016 

Regulations updating and expanding the rules relating to labelling 
of animal feed and the rules governing enforcement processes. 

Environment a)The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 
b)The Private Water Supplies (Wales)(Amendment) 
Regulations 2016 

a) An Act to improve environmental controls such as charges for 
carrier bags, reduction in emissions, collection and disposal of 
waste, shellfisheries management and marine licensing. 

Page 37



Enclosure 2 
 

CC-019632-MWY/346909 
 

c) The Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2010 (as amended) 
 

b) Regulations updating the rules governing private water supplies 
c) These regulations are in place to set up an environmental 
permitting regime requiring operators carrying out certain 
operations to obtain permits for some facilities, to register others 
as exempt and provides for ongoing supervision by regulators. 

Housing The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 An Act introducing a compulsory registration and licensing 
scheme for private rented sector landlords and letting and 
management agents, which will be delivered by Rent Smart 
Wales, but enforced by local authorities. 

Civil 
Registration 

a) The Marriage of Same Sex Couples (Conversion of 
Civil Partnership) Regulations 2014 
The Marriage of Same Sex Couples (Registration of 
Building and Appointment of Authorised Persons) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2014 
The Gender Recognition Register (Marriage and Civil 
Partnership) Regulations 2015 
b)The Reporting of Suspicious Marriages and Civil 
Partnerships (Amendment) Regulations 2014 
c)The Proposed Marriages and Civil Partnerships 
(Waiting Periods) Regulations 2015 
d)The Registration of Marriages Regulations 2015 

a) Regulations introducing rules concerning same sex 
marriages and premises able to conduct the ceremonies 

b) Regulations updating the rules concerning the reporting of 
suspicious marriages. 

c) Regulations setting out how an application to reduce the 
waiting period for marrying or registering a civil partnership 
must be made to the Secretary of State 

d) Regulations setting out rules concerning the content and 
format of notices and documentation associated with 
registering marriages.  

 

Page 38



  

 

 
ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

MEETING: COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

DATE: 15 DECEMBER, 2016  
 

TITLE OF REPORT:  FREEDOM OF THE COUNTY TO THE ROYAL NAVY 
SUBMARINE SERVICE   
 

REPORT BY: HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: TO CONSIDER THE GRANTING OF THE FREEDOM OF 
THE COUNTY AND ACCEPT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 

1.0 Introduction 
 
 1.1 In December 2013 the County Council approved the following Notice of 

 Motion:- 
 
  “We, the undersigned, request that the Isle of Anglesey County Council grant 

 the Freedom of the County to the Royal Navy and the Merchant Navy 
 Association. This is in recognition of keeping sea lanes safe the trade that 
 exists between the United Kingdom and the rest of the World. This granting 
 of the Freedom should be seen as an event to commemorate the Great War 
 of 1914 – 18 and the 70th Anniversary of the Battle of the Atlantic” 

 
2.0 Consultation with the Royal Navy 
 

2.1 Following discussion with the office of the First Sea Lord with regard to this 
matter it is recommended that the Freedom of the County be granted to the 
Royal  Navy Submarine Service in recognition of the historic ties between 
Ynys Môn and the Royal Navy Submarine Service e.g. the loss of the 
submarine HMS Thetis near Holyhead in 1939. 

 
 
2.0  Power to make the decision 
 

 2.1 The County Council has powers under Section 249 of The Local Government 
 Act, 1972, “to admit to be the honorary freemen of the county or county 
 borough, persons of distinction and persons who have in the opinion of the 
 Council, rendered eminent services to the County or County borough”. The 
 granting of the Freedom of the County to the Royal Navy Submarine Service 
 would mean that the name of the Royal Navy Submarine Service would be 
 placed on the Roll of Honorary Freemen of the County and the Council would 
 confer the right of the Submarine Service to march through the streets of the 
 County on all ceremonial occasions with colours flying, drums beating and 
 bayonets fixed. 

 
 2.2 To confer the Freedom of the County requires particular protocols and 

 procedures and a ceremonial occasion organised to meet certain criteria.  

Page 41

Agenda Item 8.



  

 

 
 2.3 The following procedures would be necessary:- 
 
  A report submitted to a Special Meeting of the Council which recommends 

 that, using its powers under S.249 of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
 Council should consider offering the Freedom of the County to the Royal 
 Navy Submarine Service. A two thirds majority of the Council is required in 
 order to pass the resolution and uniformed representatives of the Royal 
 Navy Submarine Service would be present in order to accept the offer on 
 behalf of the Royal Navy.  

 
3.0  Armed Forces Day  
 

3.1 In 2018, the Council will be the lead Authority for the Armed Forces Day 

regional event – a partnership event with the Armed Forces to 

promote/acknowledge the work of the Armed Forces community. Should the 

Council resolve to grant the Freedom of the county to the Royal Navy 

Submarine Service it is recommended that this ceremony takes place as part 

of the programme for the Armed Forces Day. The Armed Forces Day is 

scheduled to take place on the 30th June 2018. 

3.2 Holyhead has had a close affinity with the Armed Forces over the years and 

it is fitting that the Regional Armed Forces Day and the Freedom of the 

County ceremony is held in the town in 2018.  

 

4.0  Revenue Implications 

4.1 It will be necessary to report to the Executive in 2017/18 on the revenue 

implications and associated costs of staging the event in June 2018; those 

implications are unlikely to be affected to any significant material extent as a 

result of the Council granting the additional rights described in this report. 

 

5.0 Recommendations 

5.1  The Council convenes a special meeting for the purpose of resolving the 

granting of the Freedom of the County to The Royal Navy Submarine 

Service. A two thirds majority is required in order to pass the  resolution. 

 5.2   To invite uniformed representatives of the Royal Navy Submarine Service to 

  the special meeting. 

 

Huw Jones  
Head of Democratic Services  
5/12/16  

Page 42


	Agenda
	1. Minutes
	Minutes - 18th October, 2016 (Extraordinary)

	6. 2017/18 Council Tax Reduction Scheme
	7. Adoption of Powers by Council and Delegation to Officer
	Report - Delegated Powers to Head of Service
	Appendix 1 - Delegated Powers to Head of Service
	Appendix 2 - Delegated Powers to Head of Service

	8. Freedom of the County to the Royal Navy Submarine Service

